
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

April 26, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Apr 26 6:15 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Apr 26 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr 26 
Immediately 

following 
Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 10 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 10 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 10 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 10 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

May 17 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

 
D. Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
E. SPECIAL RECOGNITION 

Certified Staff Member with 40 Years of Service 

Certified Support Employee of the Year 
Classified Support Employee of the Year 

 

F. STUDENT RECOGNITION 
Elkhart Area Career Center: 

Award for Excellence Winner 
2016 American Advertising Award Winners 

 

G. MINUTES - 
April 12, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
April 12, 2016 – Public Work Session 

April 14, 2016 – Public Work Session 
April 19, 2016 – Public Work Session 

 



BOARD AGENDA April 26, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

H. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2016 – March 31, 2016 

 
 Fund Loans – The Business Office reports on fund loans made at the end of 

March 2016. 

 
 RX Help Center – The Business Office seeks Board approval of a proposal from 

RX Help Center. 

 
 School Corporation Waiver from the Implementation of Protected Taxes – The 

Business Office seeks Board authorization to file the application. 

 
 Extra Curricular Purchases - The Business Office seeks Board approval of extra-

curricular purchase requests. 

 
 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Student Services – Social Workers  

 

 Memorandum of Understanding – The administration seeks Board approval of a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Vincennes University regarding early 
college opportunities for Elkhart Area Career Center students. 

 
 2015-2016 Board Meeting Schedule – The administration seeks Board approval 

of the proposed changes to the Board of School Trustees’ meeting schedule for 

2015-2016, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Board Policy IF – Curriculum Development - The administration presents 

proposed revisions to Board Policy IF – Curriculum Development. 
 

 Board Policy IG – Instructional Program Development - The administration 

presents proposed revisions to Board Policy IG – Instructional Program 
Development. 
 

 Administrative Regulation IG – New Course Adoption Procedure - The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation IG – 
New Course Adoption Procedure, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 

 
 Administrative Regulation IG-(1) – Instructional Cycle - The administration 

presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation IG-(1) – Instructional 

Cycle. 
 

  



BOARD AGENDA April 26, 2016 
 
 

3 
   

 Board Policy IGBB – Programs for High Ability Students - The administration 
presents proposed revisions to Board Policy IGBB – Programs for High Ability 

Students. 
 

 Administrative Regulation IGBB – Procedures for Identifying and Serving High 

Ability Students - The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Administrative Regulation IGBB – Procedures for Identifying and Serving High 
Ability Students. 

 
 Board Policy IKF – Graduation Requirements - The administration presents 

proposed revisions to Board Policy IKF – Graduation Requirements, and asks to 

waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Administrative Regulation IKFB – Foreign Students – Certificate of Attendance - 

The administration presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation 
IKFB – Foreign Students – Certificate of Attendance, and asks to waive 2nd 
reading. 

 
 Board Policy JEA – Compulsory Attendance and Initial Entrance - The 

administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy JEA – Compulsory 

Attendance and Initial Entrance, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Administrative Regulation JEA-1 – ECS Kindergarten Early Entrance Procedure 
and Application Form - The administration presents proposed revisions to 
Administrative Regulation JEA-1 – ECS Kindergarten Early Entrance Procedure 

and Application Form, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Grant Confirmations – The administration seeks Board confirmation of grants 

submitted to: 
 
Community Foundation of Elkhart for Student Leadership Summit grant 

from ECS.  
 
Project Lead the Way CPEG Northern Indiana for Project Lead the Way 

2016-2017 from Beardsley Elementary. 
 
Hass Manufacturing for a college tuition grant from EACC. 

 
 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 

trip requests. 

 
J. PERSONNEL 

 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 

 



BOARD AGENDA April 26, 2016 
 
 

4 
   

 

K. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 
 From Audience 

 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 













 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

April 12, 2016 
 

Elkhart Central High School, One Blazer Blvd., Elkhart – at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited.  The 
Star Spangled Banner was sung by the Shades of Blue. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol  

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 
introduced themselves. Rachel Swanson represented Central High 
School (CHS).  Ms. Swanson, a senior, is involved in soccer, National 

Honor Society, Key Club and the recent musical, and will be attending 
Belmont University in Nashville to pursue a song writing career.  Ms. 
Swanson highlighted recent events including: the orchestra’s trip to New 

York City; the choir’s trip to Chicago to see Matilda; on-going voter 
registration efforts; upcoming sports events; and a dance marathon this 
Saturday.  Olivya Beathea, a sophomore from Memorial High School 

(MHS) presented the Board members with the media guide to spring 
sports provided by the Booster Club.  Ms. Beathea reported on spring 
sports; the marching band’s spring break trip to Florida for a 

performance at the Magic Kingdom; preparations for the ISSMA 
competition hosted by CHS next week; the progress of Project Y 
including being over half way to the goal of raising $10,000 in 

scholarships. 
 

SSAC 
Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  

March 16, 2016 - Public Work Session 
March 18, 2016 - Public Work Session  
March 22, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting 

March 22, 2016 - Public Work Session 
 

Approval of 

Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$16,558,936.85 as shown on the April 12, 2016, claims listing.  (Codified 
File 1516-113) 

Payment of 
Claims  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $500.00 each 

from Christal Henderson and Dr. and Mrs. Boling for the purchase of 
team clothing and equipment for MHS girls/boys track team; $500.00 
from Stahl Heating & Air conditioning to MHS for transportation and 

tournament costs for the volleyball program; building materials valued 
at $1,432.73 from Big C Lumber to be used for junior varsity softball 
and baseball dugout enclosures at MHS; 800 backpacks filled with school 

supplies and hygiene items along with 53 cases of snack food items for 
ECS children in need from Feed the Children; and two 9-foot banners 
valued at $410.00 from A-One Apparel, Signs and Designs to ECS to be 

used to advertise the district-wide Kindergarten open house. 
 

Gift Acceptance 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1516-114) 

 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
by West Side Middle School for music for the Spring concert $500.00; 

and the purchase of a trophy case at CHS in memory of Tom Eastman, 
the athletic department will pay any remaining costs above the $2,595 

donated in Mr. Eastman’s honor. 
 

Extra Curricular 
Purchases 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved continued alternative non-

residential services agreements for two (2) ECS special education 
students. (Codified File 1516-115 and 1516-116) 

Residential 

Services 
Agreements 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of a grant to the 
Department of Homeland Security for the 2016 Citizenship and 
Integration Grant Program from Adult Education. (Codified File 1516-

117) 
 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board confirmed the submission of a grant to 

the Indiana Department of Education for High Ability Education Grant 
from the Instructional Leadership Department. (Codified File 1516-117) 
 

Grant 

Confirmation 
 

By unanimous action, the Board confirmed the submission of a grant 
Skills USA and Ryder for a Diesel Tech Lab Enhancement Grant from the 
Elkhart Area Career Center. (Codified File 1516-117)  

Grant 
Confirmation 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the April 12, 2016 listing. (Codified File 1516-118) 

 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

  



3 
 

Employment of the following two (4) certified staff members 
effective on dates indicated:  

Howard Edwards - special education at Memorial, 3/28/16 
Veronica Terry - speech pathologist at ESC, 4/12/16 

 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following four (4) certified staff members 
effective on dates indicated: 

Jennifer Hershberger - language arts at Memorial, 4/11/16 

Andrew Krabill - social studies at Central, 6/1/16 
Bryce Nixon – language arts at West Side, 6/1/16 
Alexandra Salcedo - language arts at West Side, 6/1/16 

 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

Retirement of certified staff member Susan Kitt, grade 1 at Monger, 
effective 6/1/16, with 19 years of service. 

Certified 
Retirement 

 
Maternity leave for certified staff member Natalie Blair, grade 1 at 
Daly, beginning 4/12/16 and ending 6/1/16 

 

Maternity 
Leave 

Regular employment of the following five (5) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Kathryn Aistrop – food service at Hawthorne, 3/23/16 

Yesenia Alvarez – paraprofessional at Elkhart Academy,  
  3/23/16 
Robin Hill -  bus helper at Transportation, 4/12/16 

Patricia Laws – food service at Pinewood, 3/24/16 
April Sherwood – paraprofessional at Eastwood, 3/23/16 
 

Classified  
Employment 

Retirement of classified employee Diana Franklin, secretary at 
Elkhart Academy, effective 6/17/16, with 19 years of service. 

Classified 
Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following six (6) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Yvonne Curtis – food service at Pierre Moran, 3/9/16 

Jammie Fields - food service at Beardsley, 3/28/16 
Theodore Foland - energy education specialist at ESC, 
  6/30/16 

LeDeana Owens - bus driver at Transportation, 4/11/16 
Shawna Torok - food service at Cleveland/Woodland,  
  3/18/16 

Sherree Wilkey - technical assistant at PACE, 3/25/16 
 

Classified 
Resignations 
 

Medical leave for classified employee, Haley Burkhart, physical 

therapist at PACE, beginning 3/18/16 and ending 6/1/16. 

Classified 

Medical Leave 
 

Termination of classified employee Monique Thompson, food 
service at Memorial, effective 4/12/16, in accordance with Board 

Policy GDPD. 
 
 

Termination 
 



4 
 

Ted Foland, energy education specialist, presented a Building Energy 
Report on MHS regarding the building’s occupied holiday spring break 

audit conducted on April 4th.  Only a few items were left turned on 
including computer lab screens.  In 2015, CHS posted its best cost 
avoidance performance at 34.6%, valued at over $246,000, and overall 

since September of 2009, over 1.2 million dollars has been saved.  
District-wide the cost avoidance is valued at over 6.8 million dollars. 
 

Building Energy 
Report 

Elkhart Central High School Principal Frank Serge welcomed everyone to 
the school.  The following students were presented with excellence 
awards:  All-State Honor Choir members Marcella Sanfillipo and Lanya 

Dancler.  Athletics: Brian Buckley, Athletic Director introduced Rylee 
Damewood, Xochitl Gallegos, Abigail Downs, Ashley-Lauren Harmon, 
Estela Pedraza, Skiler Reveal, Mackenzie Scott and Kiara Stabler, 8th 

place finish at state gymnastics meet; Sydney Dygert, qualifier for state 
swimming meet in 200 yard individual medley and 100 yard butterfly; 
Logan Brown, 10th place finish at state diving meet.  Principal Serge 

discussed the school improvement plan and success of various student 
activities including 35 active clubs with over 350 students involved. The 
following departments were highlighted:  Orchestra; Principal Serge 

noted the jazz ensemble was the only group at state to win gold with 
distinction and he added over 150 students will be involved in orchestra 

next year requiring additional space.  Sadie Knepper, Gillian Smith, 
Madeline Congdon and Andrew Scott performed.   The robotics club gave 
a demonstration.  Kristin Baker, language arts teacher, noted Shrek the 

Musical was a near sell out and the involvement of orchestra students as 
well as theater arts students contributed to its success.  Ms. Baker also 
acknowledged the Elkhart Education Foundation’s contribution which 

provided outstanding sets and costumes.  Lincoln Bowers and Joseph 
Iavagnillio performed a song from the play.  Early College: Regina 
Roberson, early college career counselor, reported on the success of the 

program including current participation of 49 juniors, 42 sophomores, 
and the recent addition of 53 freshmen.  Twenty juniors are on track to 
graduate next year from CHS and Ivy Tech.  Gio Parra talked about his 

experience in the program.  Project Lead the Way:  Eric Jantzen, science 
teacher, described the program.  Will Southern spoke about how the 
program has given him direction into the bio-medical field and his future 

plans to become an oncologist.  Co-Teaching:  Cory Watt described the 
various scenarios used by co-teaching and the benefits to the students.  
The jazz band performed. 

 

Building Report 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:50 p.m. 
 

 

Adjournment 

  



5 
 

APPROVED: 
  ____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

April 12, 2016 
 
Elkhart Central High School, One Blazer Blvd., Elkhart – 8:25 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony Gianesi Rob Haworth 
 Shawn Hannon  
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a marketing presentation from Joel Harmon, president 
Harmony Marketing. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:20 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

April 14, 2016 
 
Elkhart Area Career Center, Room A111, 2424 California Road, Elkhart  
– 2:00 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Shawn Hannon Dawn McGrath 
 Doug Hasler Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth  

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard presentations from staff on various class structures and 
transportation scenarios regarding the strategic plan.  Financing information was 
presented by Todd Samuelson of H.J. Umbaugh & Associates. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
April 19, 2016 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Doug Thorne  
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board met to review proposed bylaws and revisions to the policies 

adopted for Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:45 a.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, President 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 







ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, IN 

 

 

April 26, 2016 

 

 

TO:  Board of School Trustees 

  Dr. Haworth 

 

FROM: Doug Hasler 

 

SUBJECT: RX Help Centers Proposal 

 

Through the efforts of Jeff Hadden, our medical benefits consultant, our Insurance 

Committee has received a proposal from RX Help Centers to provide a prescription drug 

advocacy service to ECS employees who are enrolled in our medical benefit plan. 

 

The RX Help Centers program is focused on assisting employees to obtain expensive 

brand name and/or specialty drugs at deeply discounted prices.  RX Help Centers is able 

to provide this service by leveraging its relationships with prescription drug 

manufacturers and foundations to tap into sources of funding for prescription 

medications. 

 

If the RX Help Centers program were instituted in Elkhart Community Schools, 

employees who are enrolled in our medical benefits plan would be eligible to participate.  

Participation would be voluntary.  Those who chose to take advantage of the RX Help 

Centers program would do so free of charge.  Elkhart Community Schools would pay a 

fee for every employee who elects to participate.  Estimated annual costs for this program 

would be between $50,000 and $60,000.  Projected savings to Elkhart Community 

Schools could be as high as $1 million.  Savings of significantly less than this projected 

level would still allow ECS to recover our cost.  Any savings exceeding our costs would 

reduce the overall cost of our medical benefit plan which would assist ECS in controlling 

annual claim costs. 

 

I have been in communication with employers who currently participate in the RX Help 

Centers program.  Those employers report that they are generating savings through their 

participation in this program. 

 

Our Insurance Committee has reviewed the RX Help Centers program with Jeff Hadden, 

and has received a presentation from an RX Help Centers representative.  The Insurance 

Committee has recommended that Elkhart Schools implement this program, as a benefit 

to ECS employees, and as part of an effort to control future claim and insurance premium 

costs. 

 

I will be recommending Board approval of the RX Help Centers proposal during the 

April 26
th

 Board meeting.  Please contact me at 262-5563 if you have any questions 

concerning this matter. 

 



Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

 

April 26, 2016 

 

TO:  Board of School Trustees 

  Dr. Haworth 

 

FROM:  Douglas Hasler 

 

SUBJECT: Protected Taxes Waiver 

 

As a school corporation which is heavily impacted by circuit breaker property tax credits, Elkhart Schools 

is eligible to request a waiver of Indiana’s “protected taxes” statute.  This law has been established to 

shield debt service funds from the loss of revenue due to reduced distributions of property taxes.  The 

effect of “protecting” our debt service funds, however, is to shift the burden of these losses to other 

funds, including the Transportation Fund and Capital Projects Fund.  By applying for, and receiving the 

waiver from protected taxes, the loss of property tax revenue to our Transportation and Capital Projects 

Funds will be reduced to about half of what it would be in the absence of the waiver. 

 

It is critical to the operation of our Transportation program that we apply for the Protected Taxes waiver.  

I need to submit a form (see attached) to the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance by May 

2nd in order to meet the deadline.  By signing the form, I am certifying that I have authority from the 

Board of School Trustees to submit this request.  I will be requesting your authorization to complete and 

submit this form to DLGF during the April 26th Board meeting. 

 

If you have any questions concerning this matter prior to Tuesday, please contact me at 262-5563. 



























The Board’s meeting site is accessible to all persons. Any person requiring accommodation or assistance 
should contact the Assistant Secretary to the Board of School Trustees with the School Corporation’s 
administrative office, located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at 574-262-5506. 

 
 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Regular Board of School Trustees’ Meetings 
2015-2016 

 
Regular meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 

California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 
 

A public work session is held at 5:30 p.m. preceding each regular meeting in the J. C. Rice 
Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 

 
July  14, 2015 
 

 January  12, 2016 Osolo 

July  28, 2015 
 

 January 26, 2016  

August  11,2015 
 

 * February 9, 2016   

August  25, 2015 
 

 * February 23, 2016  Pierre Moran 

September 8, 2015 
 

 * March 8, 2016  

September 22, 2015 
 

 * March 22, 2016  

October 13, 2015  
 

Mary Beck * April  12, 2016 Central 

October 27, 2015 
 

 * April  26, 2016  

November 10, 2015 
 

 May  10, 2016  

November 24, 2015  
 

Eastwood May  24, 2016  Riverview 

December 8, 2015 
 

 June  14, 2016  

December 21, 2015    7:00 a.m. June  28, 2016  
 
 
Any changes to the regular meeting schedule will be determined by Board action and special 
notice of any variance in date, time, or location will be posted and mailed to persons who have 
requested the same. 

Public Work Sessions 
2015-2016 

Public work sessions will be held at 7:00 a.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 
California Road, Elkhart. 
 
July             21, 2015 January 21 & 22, 2016 – Annual Board Retreat 
August  18, 2015 February 16, 2016 
September 15, 2015 March             15, 2016  
November  17, 2015 April              19, 2016 
December  21, 2015 May  17, 2016 
 June  21, 2016 
 
  

 
 
 

Updated by Board – January 26, 2016 
Proposed changes April 26, 2016 



IF 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 

 
Curriculum Development 

The Board of School Trustees recognizes its responsibility for the quality of the educational 
program in the schools.  To this end, the curriculum, assessment, and instruction shall be aligned 
with Indiana Academic Standards.  The design of the curriculum, the blueprint of the 
assessments, and the delivery of the instruction will be evaluated and adjusted as a function of an 
ongoing instructional cycle. 
 
As educational leads of the Corporation, the Superintendent shall be responsible to the Board for 
the development and evaluation of curriculum and preparation of courses of study.  S/He shall 
establish administrative guidelines for curriculum which ensure proper development, 
implementation, and evaluation. 
 
For the purpose of this policy, curriculum refers to courses of study including content, processes, 
classes, and instructional materials.  The use of additional resources, materials, technology, 
educational study trips, instructions activities and other organized activities shall be related to the 
accomplishment of the educational goals of the corporation. 
 
Instructional Cycle Committees shall meet on a regular basis with the appropriate parent, teacher, 
and administrative representation.  Instructional materials shall be selected in alignment with the 
academic standards currently in effect in the State of Indiana as adopted by the Indiana State 
Board of Education.  The Superintendent shall be responsible for the development of guidelines 
for the selection of materials, revision of curriculum, administration of assessments, and delivery 
of instruction. 
 
The Board directs the curricula 
 

A. Provide instruction in courses required by the Indiana Code and IDOE rules and 
regulations 

B. Be consistent with the district’s expectations, philosophy, and goals; 
C. Assure courses of study be coordinated effectively, thus eliminating unnecessary 

duplication and omissions; 
D. Maximize the development of each student’s potential; 
E. Assure all students have access to the full curriculum; 
F. Be supported by non-biased research relative to program efficacy; and 
G. Support content literacy as defined by national content organizations. 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 2            
Curriculum Development  Board Policy IF 

 
The prescribed sequence of course prerequisites shall be established by the Instructional 
Leadership Department, acting on the recommendation of the district-wide Instructional Cycle 
Committees. 
 
Instruction shall adhere to the adopted curriculum. 
 
The Superintendent shall make progress reports periodically to the Board. 
 
The Superintendent may conduct innovative programs as are deemed to be necessary to the 
continuing growth of the instructional program.  The Superintendent shall report each innovative 
program to the Board periodically. 
 
 

April 26, 2016 



 

IF 
Board Policy 

 

 
CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT 

The Board of School Trustees recognizes its responsibility for the quality of the 
educational program of the schools. To this end, the curriculum shall be developed, 
maintained, evaluated, adjusted, and adopted on a continuing, cyclical basis and in 
accordance with an ongoing plan based on Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) rules 
and regulations and Indiana Academic Standards.  Curriculum, instruction, and 
assessment must be aligned with each other. 
 
For purposes of this policy, curriculum refers to courses of study including content, 
processes, classes, and instructional materials.  The use of additional resources, materials, 
educational study trips, instructional activities and other organized activities shall be 
related to the accomplishment of the educational goals of the adopted curriculum. 
 
Curriculum committees should meet on a regular basis with the appropriate parent, 
teacher, and administrative representation. Materials should be selected according to the 
Indiana Academic Standards and rules and regulations adopted by the IDOE.  System-
wide decisions on the selection of materials and revision of curriculum shall follow Data-
Driven Decision-Making. 
 
The Board directs that the curricula 
 
 A. provide instruction in courses required by the Indiana Code and rules and 

regulations of the IDOE; 
 
 B. be consistent with the district’s expectations, philosophy, and goals; 
 
 C. assure courses of study be coordinated effectively, K-12, thus eliminating 

unnecessary duplication and omissions; 
 
 D. maximize the development of each student’s potential; 
 
 E. assure student access to the full curriculum; 

 
  F. be supported by non-biased research relative to program efficacy; 

 
  G. supports content literacy as defined by national content organizations; 

 
  H. provide pedagogical approaches consistent with recommendations of 

national content organizations. 
 
 Prerequisites shall be established by the Curriculum and Instruction Department and the 

Assistant Superintendent for Instruction, acting on the recommendation of the appropriate 
district-wide curriculum committee. 



 

 
 To assure that the above directives are followed, all instruction should adhere to the 

adopted curriculum.  Exceptions are subject to Board Policy IG. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall make progress reports periodically to the Board. 
 
 
 

December 8, 2009 



IG 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 

 
Instructional Program Development 

Elkhart Community Schools supports creative curriculum development and instructional delivery.  
Course objectives must meet standards as set by the local Instructional Cycle committee, IDOE, 
and national professional guidelines.  Curriculum, instruction, and assessment must be aligned. 
 
Teachers and other staff members are encouraged to submit ideas for course and program 
development.  These ideas must be submitted through the process delineated by the Instructional 
Cycle Procedure, and be subject to the premises as outlined in Board Policy IF. 
 
 

April 26, 2016 



 

IG 
Board Policy 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM ACCOMMODATIONS 

Elkhart Community Schools supports creative curriculum development.  Course 
objectives must meet standards as set by the local curriculum committee, IDOE, and 
national professional guidelines. Curriculum, instruction, and assessment must be 
aligned. 
 
Teachers and other staff members are encouraged to submit ideas for course and program 
development. These ideas must be submitted through the process delineated by the 
Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision Procedure, and be subject to the premises as 
outlined in Board Policy IF. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 28, 2000 



IG 
Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

This process is meant to promote the consideration of new opportunities for students to 
experience a variety of high quality academic options.  The comprehensive design of the 
academic program should be fluid in response to student needs and economic demand.  Course 
objectives must be anchored in Indiana Academic Standards. 

New Course Adoption Procedure 

The individual or team promoting the addition of a new course will work with department 
leadership to record considerations specified below and author a written proposal.  This proposal 
will be submitted to the Building Principal, Counselors, the Instructional Cycle Committee, and 
Instructional Leadership Team for endorsement.  Subsequent recommendations will be provided 
to the Deputy Superintendent who will present the new course proposal and rational to the Board 
of School Trustees for approval.   

Once the course is approved, the Data Team will assign a course number in the Student 
Information System and the Business Office will be informed of the adopted curricular materials.  
The timing of the availability of the course is subject to deadlines related to purchasing and 
student scheduling seasons. 

Considerations to address in proposal:  

1. What is the course outline?  

a. What is the State Approved Course Title/Number? 
b. What are the Essential Questions and Standards? 
c. What are the Assessments? 
d. What are the student activities? 
e. What is the wording of the course description to be offered in the curriculum 

guide? 

2. The justification: 

a. What student needs would this course meet? 
b. How does this course fit into one or more College and Career Pathways? 
c. What data is there to support the demand for this course? 
d. What is the expected improved outcome as a result of offering this course? 

3. What resources are required? 

a. Software/Hardware? 
b. Digital content? 
c. Materials/Supplies? 
d. Printed material, text? 



Page 2 of 2   IG 
New Course Adoption Procedures Administrative Regulation 

 
4. The opportunity cost and instructional capacity: 

a. What existing courses might be impacted by reduction of enrollment due to the 
provision of this course? 

b. What licenses will be required to teach the course? 
c. Does the existing staff possess the qualifications and capacity to teach this course 

along with other necessary courses?  How will this be mitigated? 
d. What is the building capacity to house this course? 

 
 

April 26, 2016 
 



IG-(1) 
Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 

 
Instructional Cycle 

The Instructional Cycle process is meant to provide structure for a comprehensive delivery of 
effective instruction.  The components are sequential and cyclical as follows: 

(1) Horizontal, vertical, and interdisciplinary alignment of guaranteed content from pre-K to 
college and career readiness; 

(2) Authentic and formal assessments that measure progress and achievement along and 
within these continuums; 

(3) Texts, resources, digital content, materials, and activities that support the acquisition of 
skills and knowledge outlined in the guaranteed curriculum 

(4)  Implementation of the instructional design at the school level and district wide; 
(5) Evaluation of the quality and fidelity of implementation at the school level and district 

wide; 
(6) Evaluation of the impact of the instructional program at the school level and district wide. 

 

Alignment of 
Standards,
Big Ideas

Measuring 
Progress and 
Achievement

Texts, 
Resources, 
Activities

Implementation

Quality of 
Implementation

Program 
Evaluation

INSTRUCTIONAL
CYCLE

1

2

34

5

6

 

  



Page 2 of 2            IG-(1) 
Instructional Cycle  Administrative Regulation 
 
 
Instructional Cycle Committees will be established to facilitate the processes related to the 
comprehensive oversight of curriculum design and delivery.  The work of each committee will 
progress through the stages of the cycle, generally focusing on one stage in any given year and 
progressing to the next stage as indicated by the progress of the group.  These committees will 
perpetuate from year to year, with reconsideration of membership occurring at the start of each 
school year. 
 
For each of the core disciplines, the committee membership will maintain proportional 
representation of ETA membership.  The composition of the committees will include at least two 
members from each grade band:  PreK through 2nd grade, 3rd – 5th grade, 6th – 8th grade, 9th grade, 
and high school.  The committee will be facilitated by building administration and central office 
staff as well as teacher leaders when appropriate.  Parents will be invited to serve when the 
committee is functioning in the third phase of the cycle where course materials are being 
selected. 
 
Additional Instructional Cycle Committees will also be established for the supportive disciplines 
such as the arts, music, and PE/health.  These committees will be more flexible in membership in 
order to accommodate the variety of needs indicated by various course configurations. 
 
Recommendations of the committee, particularly those that involve the acquisition of resources 
or the provision of professional development, will be submitted to the Deputy Superintendent for 
consideration by the District Administrative Team.  All decisions involving the dedication of 
district resources are subject to approval by the Board of School Trustees. 
 
Established curriculum and supplemental components will be maintained in the district learning 
management system and will be made available for public review upon request to the Deputy 
Superintendent. 

 

 

April 26, 2016 



 

IG-(1) 
Administrative Regulation 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

 
Elementary School Curriculum 

Design/Major Revision/Deletion/Pilot 
 

The process is meant to achieve good communication regarding curriculum design by providing an opportunity for input to all 
persons affected by these changes.  The process is to proceed through all steps up to the final approval stage. 
 

 
Step I (p. 1) 
 
 
Step II (pp. 2-3)  
 
 
Step III (pp. 4&5) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Step IV (p.5) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Step V (pp. 5&6) 
 
 

IF APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 July 10, 2012 
  

Develop Proposal 

A-1 Development of Supportive Data 

A. Reviewed by grade level 

B. Student Services Input 

C. Reviewed by Related Area 

D. Reviewed by School Improvement Team/Building Curriculum Team 

E. Principal Recommendation 

A.  System-wide Subject or Special 
Curriculum Committee 

B. Department of C & I 

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction Discussion 
with Principals 

Information sent to Student Services, Principals, Business 
Office, Data, and Other Persons Involved 



IG-(1) 
Elementary School Curriculum   Administrative Regulation 
Design/Major Revision/Pilot/Procedure 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

 
Elementary School Curriculum 

Design/Major Revision/Deletion/Pilot 
 

This process is meant to achieve good communication regarding curriculum design and development by providing 
an opportunity for input to all affected by this proposal.  Upon completion of Steps I and II, copies of this entire 
document (pages 1-6) are to be sent to a) all elementary principals, and b) the appropriate district curriculum 
coordinator. 

 
STEP 1: CURRICULUM IDENTIFICATION/INTRODUCTION 
 
 
Person Submitting: ______________________________________________ School: ______________________ 
 
 
Circle Choice:  Pilot (Must be reconsidered for regular course status)  or Regular Course 
 
 
 
Name of Curriculum 
 
(Must be on State Recognized Listing or waiver needs have been discussed with C & I coordinator) 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Subject Area __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Grade Level ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Suggested Implementation Date ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Person Responsible for Carrying Out Steps __________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Verification of Receipt: 
 
 
Building Principal ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Date __________________________________________ 
 
 



IG-(1) 
Elementary School Curriculum   Administrative Regulation 
Design/Major Revision/Pilot/Procedure 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
STEP II:  DEVELOPMENT OF SUPPORTIVE CRITERIA FOR NEW CURRICULUM 
 (Attach additional pages as necessary) 
 
A. Need (rationale: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
B. Level of Interest (teachers, students, parents, etc.): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
C. Objectives of the new/revised curriculum: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
D. Relationship of course objectives to IDOE Standards by grade level and/or subject (list standard 

numbers): 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
E. Resources needed (text, support materials, equipment, staff, space, and other cost items): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 



IG-(1) 
Elementary School Curriculum   Administrative Regulation 
Design/Major Revision/Pilot/Procedure 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
F.   Impact (on schedule, teacher-pupil ratio, other courses, teacher load, student load, etc.): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
G. What other areas of the curriculum (whether preceding or following this course) are related and have been consulted 

regarding ideas upon which to build, areas to reinforce, areas to provide a foundation, areas not to overlap, etc? 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

H. Evaluation procedure to be used to evaluate course: 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I. Attach a description suitable for placement in the curriculum guide and an outline of the course which 
shows the major content areas to be covered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
All sections in Step II must be completed and provided 

for the persons/groups in Step III to consider. 



IG-(1) 
Elementary School Curriculum   Administrative Regulation 
Design/Major Revision/Pilot/Procedure 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

STEP III: DISCUSSION AND CRITIQUING OF THE PROPOSED COURSE WITH CURRICULUM PERSONNEL 
 

Discussion should cover, but not be limited to the criteria listed in Step II. 
 

A.   
 

Recommendation: 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   Signature ______________________________________ Date ___________________________ 
 
B.   

 
Recommendation: 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   Signature _______________________________________ Date ___________________________ 
 
 
C. 
 
 Recommendation: (use attachments if several staff members are involved) 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
   Signature __________________________________ Date ________________________ 
 

D. 
  

Recommendation: 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
   Signature __________________________________ Date _______________________ 

Grade Level Committee (if appropriate) 

Student Services Input 

Other staff in related areas (see Section II G) 

Building SIT/Building Curriculum 
 



IG-(1) 
Elementary School Curriculum   Administrative Regulation 
Design/Major Revision/Pilot/Procedure 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

E. 
 
 Recommendation: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   Signature _______________________________ Date ________________________ 
STEP IV: REVIEW 
 
A. 
 
 Recommendation: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Signature of C & I Coordinator ______________________________ Date ________________________ 
 

B. 
 
 Recommendation: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
 Signature of C & I Director ________________________________ Date ________________________ 
 
STEP V: FINAL CONSIDERATION 
 
A.   (Discussion with principals) 
 
 Recommendation : 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Signature _____________________________________________ Date ________________________ 
 
B. Information regarding course to be sent to Board of School Trustees via Board Packet or Board Presentation. 
 
         Date ___________________________  

Principal 

System-wide Subject or Special Curriculum 
 

Department of C & I 

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction 



 

IG-(2) 
Administrative Regulation 

 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 
MIDDLE SCHOOL ELECTIVE COURSE PROCEDURE 

 
The process is meant to achieve good communication regarding course design by providing an 
opportunity for input to all persons and departments affected by these changes.  The process is to 
proceed through all steps up to the final approval stage.  Please note:  all information except the 
actual course number should be completed on the Course Number Assignment Form

 

 before it is 
forwarded for course number assignment. 

 
 

I.  A-C 
 
 
 
 

 
II. – V.   

 
 
 

VI.  
 
 
 

VII.  
 
 

IF APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 July 10, 2012 
  

Elective Course Initiated 

Input of Building Department 
Chairperson and Principal 

Full Course Information Developed 
(Standard Format) 

Endorsement 

Full Set of Course Information 
sent to C & I for final approval 

Computer ID Number Assigned 

Information sent to Guidance, Principals, Business 
Office, Data, and Other Persons Involved 



IG-(2) 
Administrative Regulation 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 

MIDDLE SCHOOL ELECTIVE COURSE PROCEDURE 
 
This process is meant to achieve good communication regarding course design and development by 
providing an opportunity for input to all affected by this proposal.  Upon completion of Steps I and II, 
copies of this entire page are to be sent to a) the principal of all three middle schools, b) the appropriate 
department chairs at all three middle schools, and c) the appropriate district curriculum coordinator. 
 

I. 
 

Title Page 

A. Course Title _______________________________________________________ 
 
B. Written/developed by _______________________________________________ 

 
C. Date developed ____________________________________________________ 

 
II. Basic Overview 
 

A. Course description: 
Purpose; desired student outcome(s) 
 

B. Prerequisites (if any) 
 

C. Evaluation 
 

D. Materials/resources 
 

E. Special comments 
 
III. 
 

Student Performance Objectives 

The student will be able to . . . . . .  
 

IV. 
 

Course Outline 

V. 
 

Special Considerations 

VI. 
 

Endorsement 

A. Signed by Department Chair _____________________________ / ___________ 
Date 

B. Signed by Principal  ___________________________________ / ____________ 
Date 
 

VII. 
 

Final Approval 

 
July 10, 2012 



 

IG-(3) 
Administrative Regulation 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

 
High School  

Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision/Deletion 
 

The process is meant to achieve good communication regarding course design by providing an opportunity for input to all 
persons and departments affected by these changes.  The process is to proceed through all steps up to the final approval stage.  
Please note: all information except the actual course number should be completed on the Course Number Assignment Form

 

 
before it is forwarded for course number assignment. 

 
Step I (p. 1) 
 
 
Step II (pp. 2-3)  
 
 
Step III (pp. 4&5) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Step IV (p.5) 
 
 
 
 
 
Step V (pp. 5&6) 
 
 

IF APPROVED RETURN TO C & I 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
July 10, 2012  

Proposal to initiate a new course or a major revision  

A-1 Development of Supportive Data 

A. Reviewed by department or grade level 

B. Guidance Input 

C. Reviewed by Related Areas 

D. Reviewed by School Improvement Team/Building Curriculum Team 

E. Principal Recommendation 

A.  System-wide Subject or Special 
Curriculum Committee 

B. Department of C & I 

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction 
Discussion with Principals 

Information sent to Student Services, Principals, 
Business Office, Data, and Other Persons Involved 

Computer ID Number Assigned 



IG-(3) 
High School Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision/Deletion Administrative Regulation 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

 
High School Course Addition/Major Revision Procedure 

 
This process is meant to achieve good communication regarding course design and development by providing an 
opportunity for input to all affected by this proposal.  Upon completion of Steps I and II, copies of this entire 
document (pages 1-6) are to be sent to a) the principal of both high schools, b) the appropriate department chairs at 
both high schools, and c) the appropriate district curriculum coordinator. 

 
 
 
 
STEP 1: CURRICULUM IDENTIFICATION/INTRODUCTION 
 
 
Person Submitting:                School:  
 
 
Circle Choice:  Pilot (Must be reconsidered for regular course status)  or Regular Course 
 
   Semester              or Year 
 
Name of Course 
 
(Must be on State Recognized Listing or waiver needs have been discussed with C & I coordinator) 
    
 
 
 
Subject Area       
 
 
Grade Level      
 
 
Suggested Implementation Date             
 
Person Responsible for Carrying Out Steps __________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Verification of Receipt: 
 
Department Chairperson _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Date ___________________________________________ 
 
Building Principal ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Date __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
  

All steps and approval must be obtained by November 15 to be implemented in the schedule for the following fall course 
selections. 



IG-(3) 
High School Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision/Deletion Administrative Regulation 

Page 3 of 6 
 

STEP II:  DEVELOPMENT OF SUPPORTIVE CRITERIA FOR NEW COURSE 
 (Attach additional pages as necessary) 
 
A. Need (rationale): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
B. Level of Interest (teachers, students, parents, etc.): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
C. Objectives of the new/revised curriculum: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
D. Relationship of course objectives to IDOE Standards for the subject area (list standard number): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
E. Resources needed (text, support materials, equipment, staff, space, and other cost items): 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 



IG-(3) 
High School Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision/Deletion Administrative Regulation 

Page 4 of 6 
 

F.   Impact (on schedule, teacher-pupil ratio, other courses, teacher load, student load, etc.): 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
G. What other areas of the curriculum (whether preceding or following this course) are related and have been consulted 

regarding ideas upon which to build, areas to reinforce, areas to provide a foundation, areas not to overlap, etc? 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

H. Evaluation procedure to be used to evaluate course: 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I. Attach a description suitable for placement in the curriculum guide and an outline of the course which 
shows the major content areas to be covered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
All sections in Step II must be completed and provided 

for the persons/groups in Step III to consider. 



IG-(3) 
High School Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision/Deletion Administrative Regulation 

Page 5 of 6 
 

STEP III: DISCUSSION AND CRITIQUING OF THE PROPOSED COURSE WITH CURRICULUM PERSONNEL 
 

Discussion should cover, but not be limited to the criteria listed in Step II. 
 

A.   
  

Recommendation 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   Signature ______________________________________ Date ___________________________ 
 
B.   

 
Recommendation: 

 ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   Signature _______________________________________ Date ___________________________ 
 
 
C. 
 
 Recommendation: (use attachments if several staff members are involved) 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
   Signature __________________________________ Date ________________________ 
 

D. 
  

Recommendation: 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Signature __________________________________ Date _______________________ 

  

Department Chairperson(s) and Department(s) of appropriate area(s) 
 

Guidance Input 
 

Other staff in related areas (see Section II G) 
 

Building SIT/Building Curriculum Team 
 



IG-(3) 
High School Curriculum Course Design/Major Revision/Deletion Administrative Regulation 

Page 6 of 6 
 

E. 
 
 Recommendation: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
   Signature _______________________________ Date ________________________ 
STEP IV: REVIEW 
 
A. 
 
 Recommendation: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Signature of C & I Coordinator ______________________________ Date ________________________ 
 

B. 
 
 Recommendation: 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

   
 Signature of C & I Director ________________________________ Date ________________________ 
 
STEP V: FINAL CONSIDERATION 
 
A.   (Discussion with principals) 
 
 Recommendation : 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Signature _____________________________________________ Date ________________________ 
 
B. Return to C & I 
 
C. Information regarding course to be sent to Board of School Trustees via Board Packet or Board 

Presentation. 
          

Date ___________________________  

Principal 

System-wide Subject or Special Curriculum Committee 

Department of C & I 

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction 



IGBB 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 

 
PROGRAMS FOR HIGH ABILITY STUDENTS 

In accordance with State law, the Board of School Trustees shall develop a plan to provide 
appropriate educational experiences to high ability students in the School Corporation in grades 
kindergarten through grade 12. 
 
The plan must include the following components: 
 

A. a broad-based planning committee meeting periodically to review the Corporation’s plan 
for high ability students.  The committee must have representatives from diverse groups 
representing the school and community; 

B. student assessments which identify high ability students using multifaceted assessments 
to ensure inclusion of students of economic disadvantage, students from different cultural 
backgrounds, students’ displaying under-achievement, and students with disabilities.  The 
assessments must identify students with high ability in the general intellectual domain 
and the specific academic domains of English language arts and mathematics.  The 
results of the assessments must be recorded with the student test number assigned to a 
student; 

C. professional development opportunities; 

D. development and implementation of local services for high ability students including 
appropriately differentiated curriculum and instruction in the core academic areas; and 

E. systematic program assessment. 
 
High ability students shall be considered to be those who, through valid assessment, 
 

A. perform at or show potential for performing at an outstanding level of accomplishment in 
at least one (1) domain when compared with other students of the same age, experience, 
or environment; and 

B. are characterized by exceptional gifts, talents, motivation, or interest. 
 
The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines which shall include those for valid 
identification, curriculum development and implementation, and assessment of the learning 
outcomes. 
 
 

April 26, 2016 
 
 



 
 IGBB 
 Board Policy 
 
 
PROGRAMS FOR HIGH ABILITY STUDENTS 
 
The Elkhart Community Schools' adopted philosophy states that all children in the Elkhart 
community must be provided an opportunity for educational growth to the optimum degree of their 
potential, regardless of race, creed, or economic status. 
 
High ability students have potential for benefiting from programs offering breadth and acceleration 
in academics and visual and performing arts.  The future achievement and success of these students 
can be greatly enhanced by specifically designed curricula and programs. 
 
The Elkhart Community Schools provides educational programs for academic and artistic high 
ability students. 
 
The Administration shall establish procedures for the identification of high ability students along 
with a program of services for those students at each grade level, consistent with this policy and 
state law.  The Administration shall also establish a Broad-Based Planning Committee to review the 
Elkhart Community Schools’ plan for serving high ability students.  The committee shall have 
representatives from diverse groups representing the school and community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 25, 2009 



IGBB 
Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 
 

A. 

PROCEDURES FOR IDENTIFYING AND SERVING HIGH ABILITY STUDENTS 

A high ability student indicates a child or youth performing at, or showing the potential 
for performing at, an outstanding level of accomplishment when compared to others of 
the same age, experience, or environment. 

Definition 

B. 

A student shall be identified as a high ability student through a formal identification 
process in accordance with the following procedures and Indiana law: 

Identification 

1. All ECS students in Grades K-8 will participate in Measures of Academic Progress 
(MAP) testing provided by the Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA). Scores 
from the winter administration will be used to identify students with high 
achievement levels. 
 

2. All students in grades K, 2, and 5 not previously identified as high ability will be 
screened for cognitive potential.  Students in Grades K and 2 will be screened using 
the Cognitive Abilities Test (CogAt).  Students in grade 5 will be screened based on 
the results of the winter administration of the NWEA.   

 
3. The full CogAT will be administered to students in grades K, 2, and 5 who 

performed at the 80th percentile on the screen.  
  
4. Students will be identified using local norms.  The NWEA and CogAT cut scores 

will be set by the High Ability Broad Based Planning Committee in 2016 and 
reviewed on a regular basis thereafter.  

 
5. Students with scores close to the threshold for high ability identification are rated on 

the Scales for Identifying Gifted Students (SIGS), a subjective instrument which 
collects survey information from teachers and parents. 

 
6. Students can be identified as high ability in the areas of math, English language arts, 

or general intellectual (both).  
 
7. If a student was receiving high ability services in a previous setting, standardized 

testing evidence from that agency can be submitted for review by the ECS 
identification team. If the student received scores at or above the required percentile 



Page 2 of 3 
Procedures for Identifying and Serving IGBB 
High Ability Students  Administrative Regulation 
 

on an acceptable test in that setting, the results may qualify the student for high 
ability services at ECS without any additional testing. 

 
8. Students who enroll at ECS without previous evidence of high ability may wait to 

participate in the regular annual assessments or may participate in testing scheduled 
prior to the start of the school year.  This testing will be provided for free to students 
registered with ECS. 

 
9. This thorough assessment strategy precludes the need to request additional testing 

and allows for equal opportunities in considering all students. 
 

C. 
 
Programs for High Ability Students 

Elkhart Community Schools shall provide an array of learning opportunities for high 
ability students and shall implement procedures to notify parents/guardians of these 
opportunities.  These shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. instructional and organizational patterns enabling identified students to work together 

as a group, to work with other students, and to work independently; 
 

2. a continuum of learning experiences leading to the development of advanced level 
products and performances and opportunities to accelerate in areas of strength; and 

 
3. access to differentiation, enrichment, relevance, emotional support, and responsive 

program design and delivery. 
 

D. 

Instructional plans will be designed to meet the needs of all high ability students, 
including students learning English as a Second Language, students with Individual 
Education Plans (IEPs), and students with behavioral or health needs. High ability 
services will continue unless: 

Change of Placement 

1. evidence indicating past testing is invalid or no longer relevant; 
 

2. support plans have not been successful; or 
 
3. a parent requests discontinuation of service. 



Page 3 of 3 
Procedures for Identifying and Serving IGBB 
High Ability Students  Administrative Regulation 
 

In cases where a student is having difficulty in a high ability program, the high ability 
coordinator will identify the root cause of the problem; consult with  the teacher; and 
support adjustments to the curriculum, instruction, assessment, or social emotional 
support. 

 
E. 

The program outcomes will be prepared on an annual basis and presented to the Board.  
Program evaluations will be conducted on a six year rotation cycle beginning 2015. 

Program Evaluation 

 

 

April 26, 2016 

 

 



 

IGBB 
Administrative Regulation 

 

 
PROCEDURES FOR IDENTIFYING AND SERVING HIGH ABILITY STUDENTS 

A. 
 

Definition 

A high ability student means a child or youth performing at, or showing the potential for 
performing at an outstanding level of accomplishment when compared to others of the 
same age, experience, or environment and exhibiting high performance capability in an 
intellectual, creative, or artistic area, possessing an unusual capacity for leadership, or 
excelling in a specific academic field. 

 
B. 
 

Identification 

A student shall be identified as a high ability student in accordance with the following 
procedures and Indiana Law: 

 
1. High ability students shall be identified through ongoing screening.   
2. High ability students may also include those students who perform or show potential 

for performing at outstanding levels of accomplishment in the areas and aptitudes 
identified by Indiana Law. 

3. High ability students shall be identified through the use of multifaceted assessments 
collected from multiple sources. 

4.  Data and procedures shall be designed so that students from all populations served by 
the district have access to these programs and to the assessments employed to identify 
high ability students. 

 
C. 
 

Programs for High Ability Students 

Elkhart Community Schools shall provide an array of learning opportunities for high 
ability students and shall implement procedures to notify parents/guardians of these 
opportunities.  These shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
1. Instructional and organizational patterns that enable identified students to work 

together as a group, to work with other students, and to work independently. 
2. A continuum of learning experiences that leads to the development of advanced level 

products and performances. 
3. In-school and, when possible, out-of-school options relevant to the student’s areas of 

strength as available during the school year. 
4. Opportunities to accelerate in areas of strength. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

D. 
 

Change of Placement 

Appeals of decisions regarding program placements shall comply with the following 
procedure: 

 
1. Decisions shall be based upon testing criteria established by Elkhart Community 

Schools, pursuant to state law. 
2. Appeals shall initially be presented to the Supervisor of High Ability Programs. 
3. In the event that a parent or guardian wishes to appeal the decision of the  

Supervisor of High Ability Programs, the Director of Curriculum and Instruction shall 
appoint a committee, pursuant to state law.  Decisions of appeals by the committee 
shall be final. 

 
A change in program placement, once a student is in the program, shall comply with the 
following procedure: 

 
1. High Ability students who move out of the district will be removed from the program. 
2. In the event parents/guardians and their student wish to exit the program, an exit 

interview will be conducted by a committee appointed by the Supervisor of High 
Ability Programs. 

3. Students not meeting behavioral and academic performance standards may be 
removed after appropriate interventions have been attempted and failed to resolve the 
problems.  A teacher or principal recommendation to remove a student must be 
approved by a committee appointed by the Supervisor of High Ability Programs.  The 
decision of the committee shall be final.  

 
E. 
 

Assessments 

Program assessments will be completed on an annual basis and presented to the Board of 
School Trustees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 25, 2009 



IKF 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 
GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

Section 1. 
 

High School Graduation 

In order to graduate from high school, a student shall 

A. complete the number and type of credits in grades 9-12, except as otherwise provided in 
this policy, required by the Indiana State Board of Education,  

B. attend at least seven (7) semesters in grades 9-12 and  

C. demonstrate proficiency of the academic standards established by the Indiana State Board 
of Education and Elkhart Community Schools through satisfactory completion of any one 
of the following three (3) procedures: 

 1. The student achieves passing scores on applicable examinations required by 
State law and or the Indiana State Board as pre-requisites for graduation

 2. The student who does not achieve passing scores on

 
Indiana’s ISTEP+:  Algebra I and English 10 Graduation Examination End of 
Course Assessments; 

 required examinations

  a. retakes the 

 
Indiana’s ISTEP+:  Algebra I and English 10 Graduation Examination End of 
Course Assessments may be eligible to graduate if the student does the following:   

required examinations ISTEP+:  Algebra I and English 10 
Graduation Examination End of Course Assessments in each subject area in 
which the student has not achieved a passing score at least one (1) time 
every school year after the school year in which the student first takes the 
required examinations

  b. completes remediation opportunities provided to the student as outlined in 
Administrative Regulation IKF Section A(5)(2); 

 ISTEP+:  Algebra I and English 10 Graduation 
Examination End of Course Assessments; 

  c. maintains a school attendance rate of at least ninety-five percent (95%) with 
excused absences not counting against the student’s attendance; 

  d. maintains at least a “C-” average in the courses comprising the credits 
specifically required by the Indiana State Board of Education; and 

e. either 

1) obtain a written recommendation from a teacher of the student in 
each subject area of the required examinations

    a) the principal must concur with the teacher recommendation, 
and 

 ISTEP+:  Algebra I 
and English 10 Graduation Examination End of Course Assessments 
in which the student has not achieved a passing score.  In order for a 
recommendation to be valid,  



Page 2 of 4  IKF 
Graduation Requirements Board Policy 

    b) the recommendation must be supported by documentation, 
including the completion of Administrative Regulation IFK-
(1) or IKF-(2), indicating the student has attained the 
academic standards in the subject area based upon 

 (1) tests other than the required examinations

  (2) classroom work; or 

 ISTEP+:  
Algebra I and English 10 Graduation Examination 
End of Course Assessments; or 

 2) Complete 

   a) the course and credit requirements for a general diploma, 
including the career academic sequence; 

   b) a workforce readiness assessment; and 
   c) at least one (1) career exploration internship, cooperative 

education, or workforce credential recommended by the 
student’s school.     

3. Where a student is a child with a disability (as defined in IC 20-35-1-28), the 
student’s case conference committee finds the following: 

 a.  The student’s teacher of record, in consultation with a teacher of the student 
in each subject area of the required examinations

1) the principal must concur with the teacher recommendation; and 

 ISTEP+:  Algebra I and 
English 10 Graduation Examination End of Course Assessments in which 
the student has not received a passing score, makes a written 
recommendation to the case conference committee.  In order for a 
recommendation to be valid, 

2) the recommendation must be supported by documentation, including 
the completion of Administrative Regulation IKF-(1) or IKF-(2), 
indicating that the student has attained the academic standards in the 
subject area based upon 

a) tests other than the required examinations

b) classroom work. 

 ISTEP+:  
Algebra I and English 10 Graduation Examination End of 
Course Assessments; or 

  b. The student meets all of the following requirements: 

   1) retakes the required examinations ISTEP+:  Algebra I and English 
10 Graduation Examination End of Course Assessments in each 
subject area in which the student has not achieved a passing score as 
often as required by the student’s individualized education program; 



Page 3 of 4  IKF 
Graduation Requirements Board Policy 

   2) completes remediation opportunities provided to the student to the 
extent required by the student’s individualized education program; 

   3) maintains a school attendance rate of at least ninety-five percent 
(95%) to the extent required by the student’s individualized 
education program with excused absences not counting against the 
student’s attendance; 

   4) maintains at least a “C-” average in the courses comprising the 
credits specifically required for graduation by rule of the Indiana 
State Board of Education and Elkhart Community Schools. 

D. Otherwise, satisfy all state and local graduation requirements. 
 
Section 2. 
 

Granting Diplomas 

A. 

Any student, who completes his/her final semester of attendance and has earned at least 
six credits from an Elkhart high school during this time, may be granted a diploma from 
an Elkhart high school. That student must also complete all requirements for graduation 
from high school 

Transfers from Other Districts 

established by in the sState of Indiana as described in Section 1 of this 
policy.  The Superintendent may waive the requirement that the student earn six credits 
from an Elkhart high school if that student has completed all requirements for graduation 
from high school established by 

B. 

in the sState of Indiana as described in Section 1 of this 
policy.  

Elkhart high schools will grant a diploma to any student who has been in attendance at 
Elkhart high schools for seven (7) semesters and has completed all other state and local 
requirements for graduation as described in Section 1 of this policy. 

Transfers within Elkhart Community Schools 

C. 

Elkhart high schools will grant a Course Completion to a student who satisfies the 
requirements established in Section 1(A) and (B) of this policy, but who does not meet the 
academic standards established by the State of Indiana through satisfactory completion of 
any one of the three (3) procedures established in Section 1(C) of this policy. 

Course Completion 

D. 

Upon the recommendation of the student’s teacher of record, Elkhart high schools will 
grant a Certificate of Completion to a child with a disability (as defined in IC 20-35-1-28) 
who is not eligible to receive a diploma or a Course Completion, but who has completed 
the four (4) year educational program as established through the student’s IEP. 

Certificate of Completion 

E. Credit for Courses Completed Before Students Enter Grade 9 



Page 4 of 4  IKF 
Graduation Requirements Board Policy 

Credit earned for high school equivalent courses taken before students enter grade 9 
will be granted in a manner consistent with Indiana laws, the rules and regulations 
adopted by the Indiana State Board of Education, and the Elkhart Community Schools.  

F. 

1. A student may repeat a high school course in which credit has been earned.  Credit 
for a course required for graduation will only be granted one time, and the highest 
grade earned will be used to calculate student’s GPA. 

Credit for Courses Completed More Than One Time 

2. The student's transcript will show the course each time it was completed and the 
grade assigned for each completion. 

3. Some courses may be taken for multiple credits with all credits contributing to the 
GPA (e.g. band, choir, etc.). 

 
Section 3. 
 

Early Graduation 

For students fulfilling all graduation requirements as established in Section 1 of this 
policy in less than seven (7) semesters, a waiver may be requested.  An application 
specifying the circumstances which make the waiver advisable will be submitted to the 
superintendent of schools for his review and approval. 

 
 
References: 511 IAC 5-3-2  
 511 IAC 6-7-6 
  
 
 
 
 October 22, 2013 
 

April 26, 2016 

 



 IKFB 
 
 

Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 
FOREIGN STUDENTS - CERTIFICATE OF ATTENDANCE 

In the event a foreign student does not meet the requirements of an Indiana high school 
diploma, a certificate of attendance may be awarded.  

 

A certificate of attendance will be 
awarded to any foreign student attending high school in the Elkhart Community Schools.  The 
certificate will include the student's name and dates of attendance, and will be signed by the 
superintendent of schools, the director of curriculum and instruction and the building principal. 

A record of the academic course of study will be completed and issued with the certificate.  This 
will include subjects taken, grades, units of credit, length of class periods, number of periods per 
week, and the student's performance as evaluated by the teacher.  This dated record will also 
include a definition of grades and carry the official seal of the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 August 1989 April 26, 2016 



JEA 
Proposed Revised Board Policy 

COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE AND INITIAL ENTRANCE
 

  

A. 
 

Compulsory Attendance 

Unless otherwise provided or due to graduation, every child between the ages of seven and eighteen 
shall attend public school or some other school taught in the English language which is open to the 
inspection of local and state attendance and school officers; and such child shall attend such school 
annually during the entire time the public schools are in session in the school district in which such 
child resides.  A student who is at least sixteen (16) years of age but less than eighteen (18) years of 
age is bound by the requirements of compulsory school attendance and may not withdraw from 
school before graduation unless 
 
1. the student, the student's parent, and the principal agree to the withdrawal; and 

2. at an exit interview, the student and the student’s parent provide a written statement 
acknowledging they understand withdrawing from school is likely to 

a. reduce the student’s future earnings, and 
b. increase the student’s likelihood of being unemployed in the future. 

3. the student's parent and school principal each provide written consent for the student to withdraw 
from school and the withdrawal is due to 

a. financial hardship in which case the student must be employed to support his/her family 
or dependent; 

b. illness; or 
c. an order by a court having jurisdiction over the student. 

When a student has provided sufficient evidence of emancipation, e.g., a court order, parental 
consent can be waived by the principal. 

B. 
 

Age of Initial Entrance 

1. 
 

Kindergarten 

Elkhart Community Schools believes kindergarten is a vital beginning for formal education and 
encourages all students who meet age requirements to attend. 
 
Children who will have reached the age of five on or before August 1 may register.  The parent(s) 
having legal custody must register their children in the school attendance area where the parent(s) 
legally resides. 
 
In order to enroll in kindergarten, a child must meet the age requirement.  For children whose 
birthday is between August 2 and September 1, an appeal may be made to the Superintendent or 
designee following the procedure accepted by the School Board.  Each case will be judged 
individually and the best interests of the individual student and of the Elkhart Community Schools 
will be considered. 
 

2. 
 

Grade One 

Children who have reached the age of six on or before August 1, or who have successfully 
completed one full year of public school kindergarten or NCATE (North Central Association 
Teacher Education) accredited kindergarten may be admitted.  Placement will be determined as  



Page 2 of 2   JEA 
Compulsory Attendance and Initial Entrance  Board Policy 

indicated in Board Policy IKE.  An appeal may be made to the Superintendent or designee for 
children who are not admitted. 
 

B. 
 

Entrance Requirements 

 

The Board shall establish student entrance requirements consistent with Indiana law and sound 
educational practices; and which ensure equitable treatment and proper placement. 

1. 
 

Kindergarten 

 

Each child of legal settlement shall be eligible for kindergarten providing s/he has attained 
the age of five (5) on or before August 1st.  Children who transfer into the School Corporation 
who have attended private or public kindergarten in another locality shall be eligible for 
Kindergarten. 

2. 
 

First Grade 

 

If a child seeking to enroll in first grade has not attended kindergarten, the Superintendent 
shall make a determination as to whether the student will enroll in kindergarten or first 
grade based upon the assessment model found in the administrative guidelines. 

 

The Superintendent shall establish administrative regulations which ensures compliance with 
State law, proper documentation of birth as well as a certified copy of any custody order or 
decree, appropriate screening, placement, and periodic assessment of children in kindergarten 
and first grade programs, and certification of proper immunization is completed or in process.  
These guidelines shall also include an appeal procedure for early entrance to kindergarten or first 
grade which is in accordance with any guidelines promulgated by the State Department of 
Education. 

 

Administrative regulations should also be established to ensure students enrolling in the 
Corporation for the first time, regardless of level, submit the proper documentation and transfer 
records promptly.  Any indication a student might be a missing child should be reported 
immediately to the Superintendent who, in turn, shall communicate with the appropriate 
authorities. 

C. 
 

Proof of Age and Name 

Proof of age and name is required of all pupils who are enrolling in Elkhart Community Schools for the 
first time.  A copy of the certified birth certificate is preferred.  Other reliable proof of student's name 
and date of birth may be accepted if a copy of the certified birth certificate is unobtainable.  Such other 
reliable proof may include hospital birth records and baptismal or circumcision certificates. 

 
 
 
 February 12, 2013 April 26, 2016 



JEA-1 
 Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
KINDERGARTEN EARLY ENTRANCE PROCEDURE AND APPLICATION FORM 

 

PROCEDURE: 

Elkhart Community Schools

Parents/guardians of children turning 5 after August 1st who want their children to enroll in kindergarten 
shall contact the child’s home school or the Student Services Department at 574-262-5540.  The home 
school or Student Services Department will provide a Kindergarten Early Entrance Application which 
needs to be completed and submitted on or before the first scheduled day of school of the school year.  
Applications will be reviewed to gain information regarding a child’s participation in Pre K or other 
identified early childhood opportunities.  Once notified of receipt and approval of the application, 
parents/guardians are to register the child(ren) at the elementary school. 

 allows children who turn 5 on or before August 1 to be admitted to 
kindergarten.  Indiana Law requires school districts to establish a procedure for considering requests for 
early entrance to kindergarten from parents/guardians of children who turn 5 after August 1.  In Elkhart 
Community Schools, this process is as follows: 

 
 
 

Child’s Name  _________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICATION 

  Last   First   Middle   (Nickname) 
 
Date of Birth  _______________________ (Please attach a copy of your child’s birth certificate) 
 
Name of Elementary School_______________________________________________________ 
 
Parent/Guardian Name(s)  ________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Address  _________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone Numbers  ____________(Home)  ______________(Cell)  _______________(Work) 
 
 
 
Please tell us about your child: 
 

 
Early Childhood Opportunity History 

Has your child attended Pre K or another early childhood opportunity?  _____ Yes  _____ No 
 
If yes, please list the name of the program  ___________________________________________ 
 
How many days/weeks did your child attend the program  _______________________________ 
  



Page 2 of 2   
Kindergarten Early Entrance Procedure and  JEA-1 
Application Form  Administrative Regulation 
 

 
Social Emotional Development 

Has your child had opportunities to interact with children his/her age?  _____ Yes _____ No 
 
If yes, describe your child’s interactions during these opportunities. _______________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you expect your child to have difficulty separating from you?  _____ Yes  _____ No 

If yes, are there ways the school can support your child to make this transition easier?  ________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Please check the following skills your child has mastered so we can learn more about your child: 

_____  Intentionally makes marks or scribbles 

_____  Can write first name 

_____  Listens to a story 

_____  Answers who, what, where questions 

_____  Follows routines at home 

_____  Follows 1 step directions 

_____  Follows 2 step directions 

How many upper and lowercase letters does your child recognize?  _______________________ 

How high is your child able to count without skipping numbers?  _________________________ 

Please circle the colors your child can name: 

red        green        yellow        orange        blue        brown        black 

Please submit information which will assist in identifying the skills your child has mastered 
along with this application.  This may include child work samples, Early Childhood Teacher 
progress reports, or other items you feel will help us begin to get to know your child. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________  ________________________ 
 Parent/Guardian Signature      Date 
 

April 24, 2016 



 

May 14, 2013 
 

JEA-1 
Administrative Regulation 

 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

KINDERGARTEN EARLY ENTRANCE PROCEDURE AND APPLICATION FORM 
 

Children must turn 5 years old between August 2nd and September 1st in order to be eligible 

PROCEDURE: 

Elkhart Community Schools

Parents/guardians of child(ren) turning 5 between August 2 and September 1 who want their child(ren) to enroll in 
kindergarten need to contact their home school or the Student Services Department (262-5540).  The home school 
or Student Services Department will provide a Kindergarten Early Entrance Application which is to be completed 
and submitted on or before the beginning of the school year.  Once notified of receipt and approval of the 
application, parents/guardians are to register the child(ren) at the elementary school of parent/guardian's residence. 

 allows children who turn 5 on or before August 1 to be admitted to kindergarten.  
Indiana Law requires school districts to establish a procedure for considering requests for early entrance to 
kindergarten from parents/guardians of children who turn 5 after August 1.  In Elkhart Community Schools, this 
process is as follows: 

Children who turn 5 after September 1 will not be considered for early entrance to kindergarten. 
 
 

 
APPLICATION: 

Child's Name ________________________________________________________________________ 
  Last    First   Middle  (Nickname) 

  
Birth Date _________________ 
 
 
Name of School _______________________________________ Date _________________ 
 
 
Parental Information Mother Father Guardian 

Name (first and last)    

Home Address:            
(Include Zip Code) 

   

Home Phone:    

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Parent Signature 

 
Must be received by the home school or Student Services Department by the beginning of the school year 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Rd. 
Elkhart, IN  46514 



























 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  April 26, 2016 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Consent Agreement  –  We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding employee 

retention. 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2015-16 school year: 

Richelle Davies  Monger/Grade 1 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employees: 

Lindsey Cox   West Side/Special Education 

Begin:  5/31/16   End:  6/1/16 

 

Megan Gutierrez  Eastwood/Grade 5 

Begin:  5/24/16   End:  6/1/16 

 

 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Amanda Carpenter  Bristol/Grade 1 

Began:  1/22/13   Resign:  6/1/16 

 

Timothy Carroll  North Side/Mathematics 

Began:  8/4/15   Resign:  6/1/16 

 

Olivia Houin   North Side/Language Arts 

Began:  8/4/15   Resign:  4/19/16 

 

Robyn Hill   Eastwood/Grade 1 

Began:  8/19/02   Resign:  6/1/16 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

e. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees at the end of the 2015-16 school  

year:   

 

Myra Cors   ESC/Behavior Support 33 Years of Service 

 

Jennifer Cunningham  Bristol/Behavior Support 31 Years of Service 

 

Karen Lockhart  Hawthorne/Grade 4  39 Years of Service 

 

Gary Wenning   Daly/Grade 1   15 Years of Service 

 

CLASSIFIED 

a. New Employees – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees: 

 

Diona Austin   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 2/18/16   PE: 4/21/16 

 

Michelle A.  Collier  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 2/22/16   PE: 4/25/16 

 

Michelle A. Daniels  Beck/Food Service  

Began: 2/16/16   PE: 4/19/16 

 

Clarence Gregg Jr.  Career Center/Paraprofessional  

Began: 2/22/16   PE: 4/25/16 

 

Heather Holycross  Feeser/Food Service 

Began: 2/18/16   PE: 4/21/16 

 

b. Retraction  – We recommend the retraction of a resignation  reported in error for the following 

classified employee: 

Sherree Wilkey  PACE/Technical Assistant 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

Candace Davis   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/4/15   Resign: 4/15/16 

 

Chere Engstrom  West Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/4/15   Resign: 4/15/16 

 

Deborah Sheppard  Monger/Food Service  

Began:  8/10/15   Resign: 4/11/16 

 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Geraldine Wilkey  Monger/Food Service 

Began: 9/30/13   Resign:  3/25/16 

 

 

d. Change to Resignation – We report a change in resignation for the following classified employee: 

 

Richard Mendez  Career Center/Jr ROTC Program Mgr. 

Began:  11/3/14   Resign:  4/15/16 

 

 

e. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employees: 

Anita Randolph  Feeser/Technical Assistant ESL 

Began: 11/10/98  Retire: 6/1/16 

       17 Years of Service  

 

   M. Therese Corey  Pinewood/Paraprofessional  

   Began: 8/22/01   Retire: 6/30/16 

       14 Years of Service 

 

 

f. Termination – We recommend the termination of the following classified employees: 

Theresa Culp   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  1/7/08   Termination:  4/12/16 

    Board Policy  GDPD 1. a, c, f, g 

 

Angela Gates   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/18/15   Termination:   4/11/16 

Board Policy GDPD  1.  a, b, c 

 

 


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance - CHS
	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	Minutes - Regular Meeting April 12 2016
	Minutes - Work Session April 12 2016
	Minutes - Work Session April 14 2016
	Minutes - Work Session April 19 2016
	March 2016 Account Balances
	Fund Loans
	RX Help Centers Memo
	Memo to Board on Protected Taxes Waiver (4.22.16)
	Protected Tax Waiver 2016
	Extra Curricular Purchases
	Fundraisers
	EC MOU Memo (ECS EACC - VU)
	EC MOU Elkhart Area Career Center - Vincennes University
	Board Meeting Schedule 2015-2016 revised 4-26-16
	IF BP new - Curriculum Development
	IF BP old - Curriculum Development
	IF

	IG BP new - Instructional Program Development
	IG BP old - Instructional Program Development
	IG REG new - New Course Adoption Procedure
	IG-(1) REG new - Instructional Cycle
	IG-(1) REG old Elementary
	IG-(2) REG old Middle
	IG-(3) REG old High
	IGBB BP new - Programs for High Ability Students
	IGBB BP old - Programs for High Ability Students
	IGBB REG new - Procedures for High Ability
	IGBB REG old - Procedures for High Ability
	IKF BP new - Graduation Requirements
	UGRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

	IKFB REG new - Foreign Students - Certificate of Attendance
	JEA BP new - Compulsory Attendance and Initial Entrance
	JEA-1 REG new - Kindergarten Early Entrance Procedure and Application Form
	JEA-1 REG old - Kindergarten Early Entrance Procedure and Application Form
	Parent Signature

	Grant - Confirmation Beardsley
	Grant - Confirmation CFEC Student Leadership Summit
	Grant - Confirmation EACC
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leaves - Perkins
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report

